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DOWN MEMORY LANE
Attention…. Stewkley on Invasion Alert 1941!
A recent visit to Buckinghamshire Archives turned up the minute 
book of Stewkley Local Defence Committee, locally termed the 
‘Stewkley Invasion Committee’, set up at the time by Winslow 
Rural District Council. The minute book was deposited in the 
County Archives, PR193/29/9, on 12 May 1964 by Stewkley Parish 
Council. The parish committees were to represent the civil power 
in an emergency and their duties included organising reserves 
of food and compiling ‘war books’ in which local resources in 
manpower and material were recorded.
The Stewkley committee’s inaugural meeting took place on 29 
September 1941 at Tythe House, the home of the Earl of Orkney, 
when his lordship proposed Mr E Faulkner as chair (Lord Orkney 
was elected vice-chair) with Mr Thomas Mead as secretary. The 
first committee was augmented by the formidable team of Miss 
Eleanor Johnson, Mrs Alice Beasley, Mrs Katherine Horsley, Mrs 
Judd and Mr Frank Mayne. 
The meeting highlighted to Winslow RDC the urgent need for 
emergency stocks of fuel and food to be stored in the village, 
the food supplies to be kept at Tythe House. 210 tons of coal 
and 500 gallons of paraffin were requested together with 
adequate supplies of food. (The fuel was still not forthcoming 
by the April 1942 meeting.) Other early matters discussed were 
the provision of a mortuary, an emergency fire pump, emergency 
water supplies, volunteer labour squads, and horse-drawn 
transport. Later committee meetings were planned to take 
place in the Village School. The minute book records 14 wartime 
meetings. The Village Hall had already been requisitioned by 
the Red Cross as headquarters and a homeless shelter, with the 
Billiard Room as casualty clearing station. As they were close to 
bakehouses, the two Methodist School Rooms were designated 
as emergency communal cooking and feeding stations.
The following meeting on 28 April 1942 was attended by Major 
Morton, the senior military officer for the district. He demanded 
that a village defence plan be put into operation at once and a 
public meeting was called for 22 May in Stewkley School to put 
the village on alert. 
Morton explained that in the event of a hostile invasion, Stewkley 

Stewkley on the Home Front in World War II

itself was of little value to the enemy, but that the road (today’s 
B4032) through the village was of great importance and that it 
would become necessary to harass the movements of enemy 
forces. He appealed for villagers’ co-operation with the home 
defence forces in the defence plan. He urged villagers who were 
not in essential services to stay indoors and to not obstruct roads 
which might hamper British forces and could assist the enemy. 
The plan for village defence was to be centred on a central point 
or keep, designated as The Old Swan Inn. This was to be sand-
bagged and trenches dug all around.

80 additional Home Guard soldiers were to be trained as part 
of the plan. At the North End, trenches were to be dug at the 
Bletchley Road junction. Mr Thomas Heley’s home, Bleak House, 
and the White Horse Inn were to be occupied by Home Guard 
and designated best to defend the road into Stewkley from 
the north. Mr Bill Grace’s loft was requisitioned to defend the 
Soulbury Road village entrance, and at the South End, trenches 
would be dug either side of Wing Road with the upstairs of Mr 
Joe Carter’s home designated a firing point with a clear field 
of fire to the south. On Dunton Road, the existing roadblock 
would be strengthened, and Mr Randall’s cottage would be 

‘loopholed’ for small arms. 
If the enemy drove back 
the village defenders, they 
would fall back on The Swan 
blockhaus which would be 
defended to the last.
Major Morton stressed the 
importance of holding a 
rehearsal of the plan so that 
on ‘action stations’, everyone 
knew what to do and where to 
report.
The supply of water 
and sanitation naturally 
preoccupied lots of local folks. 
Although mains water came 
through Stewkley in 1941, 
in the event of disruption to 
supply it would be necessary 
to revert to the remaining 
village pumps and wells, as 

The Old Swan Inn- the Keep

Buckinghamshire Battalion Home Guard 1942
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FROM THE GRAPEVINE 
10 YEARS AGO…
From August 2013, ace Stewkley VCC fast 
bowler, Terry Brown met his sporting hero, 
legendary Australian fast bowler Jeff ‘Tommo’ 
Thompson at a Wormsley charity cricket 
match…at the Village Hall Flower Show, Gill 
Wheeler again won ‘Best in Show’ Award for her patio 
flower container, and David Carter took the Michell Cup 
for highest class aggregate for vegetables and flowers…
Denise Draper took over from Joan Beaumont-Lewis after 
the latter’s ten year service as Poppy Appeal Organiser…
Stewkley mourned the passing  of  villager Walter Wody, 
aged 94, formerly owner of Wing Park Motors…Stewkley 
VCC U-15s XI, captained by Rory Scrivener, defeated 
Chearsley U-15s in an end of season 20 over match, 
scoring 124-1 and bowling Chearsley all out for 84 runs…
and Stewkley was runner-up to Seer Green in the Best 
Kept Village competition.

August 2013 
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  DIAMOND	
  DAY	
  FOR	
  DOUG	
  &	
  EDITH	
  
These	
   days	
   getting	
   married	
   isn’t	
   what	
   every	
   couple	
   do,	
  

but	
   taking	
   the	
   plunge	
   sixty	
   years	
   ago	
   led	
   villagers	
   Doug	
  

and	
   Edith	
  Hughes	
   to	
   be	
   able	
   to	
   celebrate	
   their	
   Diamond	
  

Wedding	
  anniversary	
  last	
  month.	
  	
  	
  So	
   what	
   is	
   the	
   secret	
   of	
   a	
   marriage	
   lasting	
   more	
   than	
  

21,900	
  days?	
  “A	
  little	
  give	
  and	
  take,”	
  they	
  both	
  agree.	
  
They	
   were	
   surprised	
   when	
   their	
   day	
   of	
   celebration	
  

started	
  with	
  the	
  arrival	
   in	
  the	
  post	
  at	
   their	
  home	
  in	
  High	
  

Street	
  North	
  of	
   a	
   card	
   from	
   the	
  Queen.	
  Relatives,	
   friends	
  

and	
   neighbours	
   joined	
   them	
   later	
   for	
   a	
   summer	
   evening	
  

celebration	
  in	
  their	
  garden.	
  Doug,	
   then	
   a	
   senior	
   financial	
   officer	
   with	
   the	
   London	
  

Midland	
   division	
   of	
   British	
   Rail,	
   and	
   Edith	
   moved	
   to	
  

Stewkley,	
   and	
   their	
   present	
   home,	
   in	
   1971.	
   While	
   Doug	
  

commuted	
  to	
  London,	
  Edith	
  found	
  herself	
  an	
  office	
  job	
  in	
  

Leighton	
  Buzzard.	
  He	
  retired	
  in	
  1986.	
  
In	
  Stewkley,	
  Doug	
  was	
  a	
  founder	
  member	
  of	
  the	
  Stewkley	
  

Rights	
  of	
  Way	
  Association,	
  and	
  part	
  of	
  the	
  team	
  which	
  set	
  

up	
   the	
   Short	
   Mat	
   Bowls	
   Club,	
   of	
   which	
   he	
   later	
   became	
  

variously	
  chairman	
  and	
  competition	
  captain.	
  Edith	
  played	
  	
  	
  

	
  TERRY	
  &	
  TOMMO	
  HIT	
  IT	
  OFF	
  
Terry	
  Brown,	
  once	
  as	
  Stewkley	
  Vicarage	
  Cricket	
  Club’s	
   fast	
  bowler	
   the	
  

scourge	
   of	
   visiting	
   batsman,	
   hasn’t	
   been	
   too	
   well	
   lately.	
   But	
   a	
   chance	
  

entry	
  into	
  a	
  competition	
  by	
  his	
  wife,	
  Frances,	
  saw	
  him	
  meet	
  up	
  with	
  one	
  

of	
  his	
  sporting	
  heroes	
  –-­‐	
  former	
  Australia	
  fast	
  bowler	
  Geoff	
  Thompson,	
  

known	
  as	
  “Tommo.”	
  The	
   Aussie,	
   said	
   by	
   some	
   to	
   be	
   the	
   fastest	
   bowler	
   ever	
   to	
   play	
   test	
  

cricket,	
   was	
   taking	
   part	
   in	
   a	
   Cricketing	
   Legends	
   charity	
   match	
   at	
  

Wormsley,	
  near	
  Stokenchurch,	
  which,	
  established	
  by	
  Sir	
  Paul	
  Getty,	
  has	
  

been	
  described	
  as	
  the	
  most	
  beautiful	
  cricket	
  ground	
  in	
  England.	
  (Editor:	
  

Been	
  there.	
  The	
  description	
  is	
  correct).	
  
AUTOGRAPH	
  HUNTER	
  As	
  well	
  as	
  being	
  a	
  fast	
  bowler	
  for	
  Stewkley,	
  Terry	
  Brown	
  has	
  been	
  a	
  life-­‐

long	
  autograph	
  hunter.	
  Often	
   in	
  the	
  past	
   to	
  be	
  seen	
  at	
  Lords	
  and	
  other	
  

test	
   match	
   grounds	
   at	
   the	
   back	
   of	
   the	
   pavilion	
   or	
   outside	
   the	
  

commentary	
  box	
   as	
   he	
  hunted	
  down	
  his	
   idols.	
   But	
  Tommo’s	
   signature	
  

was	
  missing	
   from	
   his	
   collection	
   of	
   hundreds	
   of	
   cricketing	
   autographs.	
  

No	
  more.	
  
Terry,	
  whose	
  home	
  is	
   in	
  Dunton	
  Road,	
  has	
  a	
  blood	
  disorder	
  and	
  had	
  spent	
  

the	
  previous	
  week	
  in	
  hospital.	
  When	
  friends	
  visited	
  they	
  doubted	
  he	
  would	
  

be	
   able	
   to	
   make	
   the	
   cricketing	
   trip	
   on	
   offer	
   after	
   Frances’	
   entry	
   in	
   a	
  

competition	
   organised	
   by	
   the	
   event	
   sponsors,	
  Wolf	
   Bass,	
   came	
   up	
   trumps	
  

and	
   two	
   tickets	
   appeared.	
   Friend	
   and	
   former	
   Stewkley	
   batsman	
   David	
  

Carter	
  and	
  wife,	
  Margaret,	
  who	
  already	
  had	
  tickets,	
  offered	
  to	
  take	
  them	
  to	
  

the	
  event,	
  and	
  reported	
  afterwards	
  that	
  Terry	
  was	
  “over	
  the	
  moon.”	
  

The	
  match	
  itself	
  saw	
  cricketing	
   legends	
  from	
  England	
  and	
  Australia	
  return	
  

to	
  the	
  battlefield.	
  England	
  won	
  with	
  former	
  captain	
  Andrew	
  Strauss	
  scoring	
  	
  

50	
  and	
  taking	
  two	
  wickets	
  with	
  left	
  arm	
  spin	
  –	
  a	
  rare	
  sight.	
  
	
  

	
  
	
  CRICKET!	
  WE	
  LOVE	
  IT	
  –	
  SEE PAGE 10 &	
  11

INSIDE	
  YOUR	
  20-­‐PAGE	
  GRAPEVINE	
  

 

Village Hall Flower Show – all the results : Village shopkeeper Natalie Mills chooses her music 

Thanks from little Lucia’s parents : Walter Wodey dies at 94 : Frogs and tadpoles in Nature Watch 
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FROM THE GRAPEVINE 
20 YEARS AGO…
From August 2003, Stewkley was runner-
up for the De Fraine Cup but winner of the 
Dashwood Trophy as best runner-up in the 
whole Best Kept Village competition…
Stewkley Scouts were in need of leaders for all 
sections…Stewkley was novelly  designated as being in ‘Area 
7-West of England’ by the Countryside Agency in a recent
consultation…Gill Wheeler won the Silver Salver for the Best
Stewkley Exhibit at the Village Hall Flower Show (see August
2013)…John Sheldon reported on the ongoing conservation
of St Michael’s Church bells, especially the decision by Oxford
Diocese agreeing with Stewkley’s argument that permission be 
granted for all eight  bells to be re-tuned…sadly 1st Stewkley
Brownie Pack and Stewkley Girls’ Club were both disbanded
for lack of leaders…and the Howe family, Debbie, Thea and
Jack, took three of the four titles for which they competed at
the Tennis Club Annual Tournament.

The Bleak House blockhaus guarding the North End

ponds would soon run dry in summer. 
Emergency stocks of toilet paper were 
purchased, and emergency latrines 
were to be dug by volunteer labour. 
The last recorded committee meeting 
was minuted on 18 October 1943 
when the Ministry of Home Security 
had suggested that activities could 
be reduced in view of the changing 
war situation, although the ‘need to 
remain in readiness to function as 
required’ was stressed. A provisional 
date of 14 November 1943 was 
agreed for the next meeting, but the 
need, clearly and thankfully, did not 
arise. Wartime invasion  

emergency stores at Tythe House 1943


